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I INTRODUCTION

A The Legal Issues

This case concerns the legality ofFMC Service Contracts Nos 14042 14682 and

15115 between Complainant Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd KLine and Fashion

Accessories Shippers Association Inc FASA Corp In the Appendices of those

Contracts apparently unbeknownst to FASA Corp members is a clause misnamed

no back soliciting The clause actually bars not back soliciting but independent

contracting by carriers with FASA Corps members or former members without FASA

Corp approval The proximate cause ofthis case is FASA Corpsdemand in arbitration

for penalties from KLine for its independent contracting with a disenchanted former

member violating FASA Corp instructions regarding the contract rates and the

European arm ofa member which alertedKLine to theforprofit nature ofFASA
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Corp and to where KLines payments to FASA Corp actually were going The

deadline for documentary discovery in this case has passed with Respondents repeatedly

rebuffing discovery in various areas

The primary legal issue is the entitlement ofFASA Corp regardless ofthe

appellation it assumes to make service contracts asashippers association under the

Shipping Act That issue is clearly within Commission jurisdiction Ifan entity does not

fit the definition ofshippers association it cannot make lawful service contracts with

ocean carriers and obviously cannot collect penalties when the ocean carrier contracts

with association members or former members Other Shipping Act issues have arisen as

the factual picture has come into focus

The definition as originally transplanted from the Interstate Commerce Act was

somewhat inapt for the ocean shipping industry since shippers associations in foreign

commerce are not identical to those in domestic commerce However the complete

history is pertinent and persuasive Legislative comment on the definition in the 1984

Shipping Act bluntly made compliance with the definition the sine qua non for a shipper

s eligibility to make lawful service contractsgroup

Complainant KLine submits that this entitlement issue and the bulk of other

Shipping Act issues raised by the Complaint are amenable to and appropriate for

l f llf l ti FASA Ch di d o comp y u ys re usate orpe procee ng espresolution at this stage of t

with discovery requests We suggest there is no point in postponing resolution of ripe

issues which are a drag on the proceeding Respondents have made the statement that

K Line is represented in the United States by its agent K Line America Inc KAM The K Line
actions discussed herein were taken by KAM employees acting for K Line Exhibit AAdavitof
Thomas Aldridge at 2

2
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there are no fact issues2 and that is corcect as to the fundamental facts The evidence

available to K Line now would have to be supplemented to complete the whole

FASAGemini picture but is adequate for disposition ofmajor issues herein If the

Administrative Law Judge disagrees on the adequacy ofthe present record KLine

submits FASA Corp should be ordered to comply fully with all outstanding timely

discovery requests and deposition notices

Despite discovery gaps the interests ofeconomy would be served by resolution of

legal issues which do not require further factual presentation otherwise wasteful

discovery disputes will continue to stall the case A ruling on the disputed discoverability

of financial information would end that discovery standoff On the other hand a ruling

based on the materials available that Respondents as currently structured and

functioning are not entitled to shippers association status would end the case on the

merits leaving only the remedy to be fashioned for Shipping Act violations which flow

therefrom

FASA Corp is the legal entity at the heart ofthe Gemini setup and is the other

I

contracting party in the KLine service contracts under scrutiny in this case The other

Respondent Gemini Shippers Association Inc plays some supporting role in the drama

induding use ofits name The checkered history of earlier FASA or Gemini

service contracts was covered in the Complaint and Amended Complaint Whether

FASA Corp is indeedanonprofiY shippers association within the AcYs definition in

its structure governance and operation is logically the first question to be answered

2
Fashion Accessories Shippers Association Incs and Gemini Shippers Association Incs Opposition to

Motion to Compel Production of Documents FMC Docket0710 lune 9 2008 at 4

3
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B The Exclusive Dealing Clause

Other Shipping Act issues include the legality ofFASA Corps carrier

commission system and another major issue the legality ofits vague and incomplete

exclusive dealing contract provision

The Exclusive Dealing Clause Exhibit A Attachment 1 gives FASA Corps

controllers a veto over carriers independent contracting with members or former

members and the pricing therein The clause lies buried in contract appendices and is

almost certainly unknown to the FASA Corp members

C The Practical Issue

FASA Corp has built up a surplus we estimate at over 10 Million The

disposition ofthe surplus is at stake here

D FASA Corp Is Unlike Other Nonprofit Associations

Our random sample of ten shippers associations shows FASA Corp to be the

odd man ouY in the universe ofshippers associations Web site information indicates

FASA Corp resembles those ten only in a thin cosmetic layer beneath which it is unique

in blocking independent contracting fixing rates collecting commissions used to amass a

huge surplus and generally operating in aselfcentric rather than membercentric

fashion Our sample shows that under its protective coloration mimicking other

associations FASA Corp is a very different reclusive and rich animal in comparison to

its freres Exhibit B

We submit the available evidence proves that the royalties paid FASA Corp by

caniers have not in the main benefited its members or the industry in which they

operate We have the proof that these monies neither flow to the members nor are

4



controlled by them in any fashion but accumulate in a bloated fund disposable at the

whim ofFASA Corpsnonmember controllers whomever they may ultimately be

Over a million dollars was paid in 2006 to unspecified professionals Exhibit C and

FASA Corp will not divulge recipients ofthose payments and what the payments bought

No document produced by Respondents indicates FASA Corp members have any

say in its governance or any knowledge ofhow it conducts its financial affairs in fact

quite the opposite Exhibit D Testimony from members would only underscore their

obvious exclusion from participation in or knowledge ofFASA Corp affairs

The former member with whom Complainant contracted revealed that Ms Mayes

president ofFASA Corp denied that membersrequest to see FASA Corps books not

based on form ofthe request Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 14 FASA

Corp follows neither its own bylaws Exhibit E nor Delaware law in its corporate

governance We daresay the amount ofits surplus and its professional fee payments

would be news to its members All these peculiarities are antithetical to the concept ofa

shippers association

Our analysis ofFASA Corps structure and operations shows it is not operating in

accord with any reasonable definition ofnonprofit and is not operating for the good of

its members or their industry both contrary to the concept ofa shippers association

FASA Corpsoverriding concern is with its own profit It is putting aside the bulk of

carciers payments presumably to be used for its nonmember controllers own purposes

FASA Corps obsession with punishing independent contracting has led it to

spend hundreds ofthousands trying to collect 75000 in penalties from K Line in the

New York arbitration which gave rise to this case Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas

5



Aldridge at 2223 This exemplifies total focus on objectives ofFASA Corps non

member controllers to the exclusion ofbenefit to its members

There is no compensating benefit to the members from legal expenses wasted in

trying to block their andnonmembers rights to independent contracting quite the

opposite the only arguable benefit from the Samsonite arbitration effort might be as a

police action to warn carriers offcontracting independently with members but the Bag

Bazaar portion can be nothing but a punitive action for KLinestemerity in contracting

with a disillusioned former member anillconsidered gamble on recovering legal costs

It would be reasonable for FASA Corp to block carriers from soliciting members for

independent contracting but such activity is not the issue in the arbitration

E The Royalty Clause

The FASA Corp device ofcollecting royalties from the carriers labeled as

dues to hoard as surplus has its own baggage of Shipping Act violations since the

royalties are paid to FASA Corp by the carriers out oftheir own funds not paid by the

shippers to FASA Corp and the net profits are not shared with the members KLines

royalty checks were made out to Gemini Shippers Association and deposited by

FASA Corp in its bank account Exhibit F

KAM tried towithhodthe final payment due to the dubious nature ofthe

royalties but FASA Corp forced payment by an arbitration demand Exhibit A Affidavit

ofThomas Aldridge at 2226

F FASA Corp PriceFixing

We believe FASA Corp violated the Sherman Act sec1ISUSC 1 in

insisting that KLine charge higher rates to a former member in an independent contract

6



than it charged that shipper under its FASA Corp contract and seeking arbitration

penalties to enforce that pricefising attempt when KLine disregarded the instruction

KLine refused to be a party to this pricefising Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas

Aldridge at 1718and 2224 We anticipate FASA Corpsexcuse to be that its

president does not orderK Line to obtain higher rates rather to give some sort oflower

rates or a penalty for giving competitive rates to the former members It is still price

fixing enforced by arbitration claims

FASA Corps hubris is monumentaL It assumes the mantle of an association

benefiting shipper members then takes expensive legal action to block independent

contracting by both members and nonmembers unless its pricefixing demands are met

G Appropriate Remedies

FASA Corp unlike other shippers associations seems to be following a play

book which is incompatible with the Shipping Act definition ofshippers association

and the Shipping Act purpose ofpromoting competitive and efficient ocean transport and

reliance on the market place and othenvise in violation ofthe Act This is no fault of

FASA Corp members

Ifthe Commission finds FASA Corp has engaged in service contracting

improperly or otherwise operated in violation ofthe Act KLine submits any action

should be taken against Respondents not the innocent victims who have no control over

Respondents the FASA Corp members FASA Corp should be prohibited from acting

as a shippers association until it distributes its retained surplus to members and proves it

is following its charter bylaws applicable law regarding govemance and disclosure and

the Shipping Act

7



II FACTS

K Line incorporates by reference paragraph 1ofthe Introduction to the

verified Amended Complaint at p 3 filed in this Docket also paragraphs 1through

6 and 9 through 14 of the Facts section ofthe verified Amended Complaint at

pp 4 through9Exhibit G These excerpts show FASA Corps organization FASA

Corps solicitation ofshippers KLines negotiation ofshipperspecific rates with

shippers KLinesentering into service contracts with FASA Corp and its

predecessors FASA Corps inclusion ofthe royalty clause KLinesentering into

service contracts withamember and former member FASA Corps commencement

ofthe New York arbitration FASA Corpsrefusal to negotiate a new contract unless K

Line conceded in the arbitration FASA Corps requirements under the exclusive

dealing clause FASA Corps members knowledgelackofknowledge of the royalty

and exclusive dealing clauses and FASA Corps request for a business review letter

BRL and Department ofJustices response Exhibits H andI Although FASA Corp

has refused to reveal its finances inferences flowing inevitably from what has been

uncovered will substitute in part for the hidden information

A FASA Corps Structure and Governance Versus Law and Corporate
Bylaws

1 Election ofthe Governing Board and Delaware Law

FASA Corp is organized as a nonstock membership corporation under Delaware

law equivalent to a nonprofit Under Delaware law members of a nonstock corporation

have the right to elect members of the goveming board Del Code Ann tit 8

215c3 FASA Corps bylaws provide that directors serve for threeyear terms thus

8
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1

elections should be held every three years Exhibit E Bylaws Article VII Section 1A

However according to documents produced in discovery only one meeting of inembers

has been held and that wason March 19 2003 over 5 years ago Eachibit D The right

ofinembers of a nonstock corporation to elect the goveming board is so central to the

concept ofa membership organization that Delaware law authorizes the Court of

Chancery to summarily order such an election on the application ofany member of the

corporation if the election is not held at the time provided in a corporationsbylaws Del

Code Ann tit 8 215d

The right ofFASA Corps members to elect the governing body the Board is

severely restricted by FASA Corpsbylaws The bylaws provide for a Board consisting

of five 5 Directors selected from the cunent Industry active past presidents ofthe

National Fashion Accessories Association Inc NFAA an organization that

merged into FASA Corp in 2004 or FASA Corp who shall elect a fifth Director from

the same group Exhibit E Bylaws Article VII Section 1A

While it is not clear which individuals are eligible to serve as a Director under this

provision it is clear that the members rights to participate in the govemance ofFASA

Corp through the election ofthe Board are limited to candidates from a group chosen by

the Board The members rights are so limited because the officersie those who are

eligible to be elected to the Boardarethemselves elected by the Board In other words

only those who have been chosen by the Board to serve as president ofFASA Corp or

who served as president ofNFAA can be elected to the Board These provisions give the

Board tight control over the election ofdirectors

9



The Boardscontrol is further enhanced by the bylaws provision that candidates

for election to the Board be nominated by a Nominating Committee which consists of

three members two ofwhom are elected by the Board and one ofwhom is appointed by

the President The bylaws also provide that the members elect four directors and that

those four directors appoint the fifth directorEibitE Bylaws Article VII Section 10

This provision is inconsistent with Delaware law which vests the right to elect directors

in the members Moreover there are no term limits on service as President or as a

Director Thus through these bylaw provisions the Board has effectively created a self

perpetuating Board despite the clear requirement of Delaware law that members shall

have authority to elect the goveming body

2 Bylaw Amendment by Members is Blocked

FASA Corps bylaws can be amended by the members only if the amendment is

approved by a majority ofthe Board Thus the members cannot amend the bylaws to

expand the class of individuals who are eligible to serve on the Board unless the Board

approves such an amendment Ifthe Board approved such an amendment it would

permit members to have meaningful participation in the governance of FASA Corp

Indeed such an amendment would give the members the ability to replace the current

Board with a board of its own choosing

Election of the Board is a right that Delaware law grants to members ofnonstock

corporations but those who control FASA Corp have effectively denied its members this

right through carefully crafted bylaws

10



3 Inspection ofBooks and Records is Refused

Delaware law gives any member in person or by attorney or other agent upon

written demand under oath stating the purpose thereof the right during the usual hours of

business to inspect for any proper purpose and to make copies and extracts from a

corporations list of inembers and its other books and records Del Code Ann tit 8

220ab As with election ofthe governing board a member may apply to the Court

of Chancery for an order to compel such inspection

FASA Corp has refused this right to at least one of its members Bag Bazaar

While Bag Bazaar did not submit a written request the refusal was summary not based

on a defect in form of the request Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 14

4 Required Annual Membership Meetings are Omitted

Article IV Section 1 ofFASA Corps bylaws Exhibit E provides that the annual

membership meeting ofFASA Corp will be held on the first Thursday of June each year

or such other time during the year as the Board may designate FASA Corps last

membership meeting per Respondents documents was held on March 19 2003

Exhibit D

B FASA Corp Operations

1 Contracting

The primary activity of FASA Corp in the person of its president Ms Mayes is

negotiating certain accessorial charges and rates ofgeneral applicability with ocean

carriers Insofar as KLines experience indicates the carriers negotiate the principal

commodity rates directly with the shippers present the results to Ms Mayes for signing

and then file under their FMC service contract Eachibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge
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at 12 Ms Mayes therefore has knowledge of the confidential rates of all the carriers

which opens the door to favoritism and manipulation of rates

2 Royalties not Dues are Paid to FASA Corp Burdening
the Shippers and Carriers for FASA Corps Profit

KLine entered into Contract Nos 14042 14682 and 15115 with FASA Corp

The most recent contract No 15115 provided for payments by K Line to FASA Corp

on a per container basis for all containers carried under the contract including the charge

of55 per dry fortyfoot container Exhibit A Attachment 5 FASA Corp refuses to

reveal any part oftheir contracts with other carriers on any kind ofconfidential basis but

it is a fair inference that its charges to other carriers are similar The FASA Corp

members themselves made no payments to FASA Corp under Contract No 15115 to

support the FASA Corp operation The dues were paid by KLine to FASA Corp

according to the service contractEibitA Attachment 5 FASA Corps website

Exhibit J states dues charged only on containers shipped under Gemini contracts

omitting identification of the payor The website intentionally blurs the reality that

FASA Corp demands royalty payments from the carriers in order for the carriers to be

rewarded with increased cargo volumes Contract No 15115 defines the payments as

Association Volume Incentive Exhibit A Attachment 5 but a perbox royalty is not a

volume incentive The incentive was forKLine to make the royalty payments in

order to obtain more cargo volume through FASA Corp Attachment A Affidavit of

Thomas Aldridge at 11 The dues label is afaade

Thepercontainer charge FASA Corp Contracts impose on the carriers goes

primarily into FASA Corps accumulated surplus not into operations to the tune of7

Million as of2006 Exhibit C KLine resisted paying this charge for years but finally

12
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1
relented based on Ms Mayessthreadpromise that unless KLine agreed KLine

would not enjoy refercals ofincreased volumes from FASA Corp Exhibit A Affidavit of

Thomas Aldridge at 4 and 11

FASA Corp has stated that more than 60000 containers are moving annually

under their contracts Exhibit J which would put FASA Corp current gross income in

the range of33 Million annually FASA Corp has tumed over no evidence that it has

distributed any monies to FASA Corp members so it must be concluded there has been

no such distribution

C FASA CorpsFinances

Although Respondents will reveal no financial information at all information has

been gleaned from publiclyavailable tax Forms 990 for the years 20042006 In round

numbers FASA Corps identifiable overhead is about 1 Million annually It usually

pays legal fees in the lower six figures It pays unidentified professional fees ofabout

1 Million Exhibits C K and L

As of tax year 2006 FASA Corp had accumulated almost 8 Million in surplus

1

2Million came from a merger in 2004Echibits C and K By now that should have

grown to over 10Million It is a virtual certainty that FASA Corps members are

ignorant about this surplus and about the 1 Million in annual professional fees paid to

unknown recipients whose identity FASA Corp should be required to reveal Only one

of the ten randomly selected associations whose web sites ve looked at has filed a Form

990 Exhibit M That Form 990 lists a similar amount in consulting fees but identified

the payment properly on the Form as fees for management Exhibit M

13



D FASA CorpsContractswith KLine

1 The Royalty Clause

The Royalty Clause is one of the paragraphs in the Annex to Contract No 15115

Exhibit A Attachment 5 Under its service contracts with FASA Corp the first of

which covered the 20042005 contract year KLine has paid FASA Corp a total of

123459 in royalties stated as dues for containers it carried under Contract No

15115 EibitA Affidavit of Thomas Aldridge at 2526

The latest invoiced amount of2504200 under Contract No 15115 was paid

under FASA Corps threat ofcollection by arbitration Exhibit N which carries a

penalty ofattorneys fees Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 25 K Line

had contracts with other FASAGemini related entities dating back to 2001 The Royalty

Clause was resisted by K Line until the 20062007ContractEchibit A Affidavit of

Thomas Aldridge at 4 11 and 25

2 The Exclusive Dealing Clause

The FASA Corp Esclusive Dealing Clause Exhibit A Attachment 1 is in an

Appendix to the three FASA Corp contracts vhich were signed on behalf ofKLine by

its North American agent K Line America Ina KAM Mr Aldridge and to his

knowledge everyone at KAM was unaware until a 2004 dispute arose ofany

impediment to contracting contained in this socalled No Back Soliciting Clause Since

no back soliciting was and is KLine policy Aldridge had no reason to scrutinize a

clause so labeled Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at T 7 9 13 and 15 Had

there been an appreciation ofthe true nature ofthe clause signing the contracts would not

14



constituteawaiverEchibit A Attachment 2 or otherwise neutralize the unlawful

nature ofthe Clause

The benign heading ofthe Exclusive Dealing Clause is ContracttoContract

MFS No Back Soliciting Exhibit A Attachment 1 This disarms the reader Actually

the clause has nothing to do with contracttocontractMFS and is reallyaNo

Contracting Without Approval Clause covering members and former members The

Clause prohibits independent contracting not back soliciting blocking contracting

either with a member or ad infinitum with a former member So once the shipper

marries FASA Corp it is forever so far as carriers who contract with FASA Corp If a

carrier steps on the trap it discovers there is nothing benign about the clause FASA

Corp will pursue a carrier ferociously at any cost for contracting with a member or

former member

a Bag Bazaar

The FASA Corp member known as Bag Bazaar or Accessory Exchange had

concluded in 2005 that FASA Corp did not afford benefits to justify the per container

surcharge imposed on the carrier and so informed the FASA Corp president Ms Mayes

EibitA Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at T1218

Bag Bazaar had been importuning KLine representatives repeatedly in

20052006about contracting independently with them but KLine had declined

Finally the pressure caused KAM personnel to approach Ms Mayes in 2006 about

independent contracting Her response was that the rate should be higher than the rate

given Bag Bazaar under its FASA Corp contract The KAM representatives made such

an offer advising Ms Mayes about it but it was rejected by the customer who then

I IS



IJ

suspended its shipments with KLine in May 2006 The KAM reps then offered Bag

Bazaar a rate below the rate in the FASA Corp umbrella contract which was accepted

and became Contract No 15121 FASA Corp promptly retaliated with an arbitration

complaint demanding damages to penalize KLine for contracting with its former

member Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 1218 and 2223

b Samsonite

Samsonite Belgium solicited the carrier world wih its Global RFP Exhibit A

Attachment 3 FASA Corp did not respond obviously it could not do so the way it is

structured and operates

There was nothing for KLine to discuss with FASA Corp about this RFP since

it emanated from Belgium and in the nature of an RFP KLine had to make its best

offer Itdid so and Samsonite awarded it a contract No 15118 Exhibit A Affidavit of

Thomas Aldridge at 1921 FASA Corp sought arbitration penalties for this exercise

of free contracting as well Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 2223

c Ann Taylor

In 2004 Ann Taylor a shipper K Line had brought to FASA Corp approached

KLine for an independent contract upon its resignation from membership in FASA

Corp The reason given was that a consultant had recommended that Ann Taylor contract

outside ofFASA Corp because the royalty payments were not justifiedEchibit A

Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 56

KAM suggested that Ann Taylor should proceed to tender its resignation to FASA

Corp as it intended to do before contract discussions began Assuming that this had been

done K Line contracted with Ann Taylor independently in No 15669 Ms Mayes
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I
leamed ofthis Contract and repeatedly complained of it Explanations that Ann Taylor

made unsolicited overtures were rejected but Mr Aldridge having been informed by Ms

Mayes that there was a contractual problem with signing Ann Taylor requested awaiver

which was granted Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 710

3 No Contract Negotiations Without theAntiCompetitive Clause

In the 2007 contracting season FASA Corp conditioned contract negotiations

with K Line on KLine conceding the arbitration and KLines accepting the

exclusive dealing clause K Line now fully informed about the anticompetitive thrust

ofthe clause declined Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 24 and Attachment

4

E FASA Corp Compared to Other Associations

We have attached as Echibit B a spreadsheet comparing what we know about

FASA Corp with salient features of ten other shippers associations chosen at random

distilled from their web sites We need not belabor the details since the chart speaks

plainly about the unique thrust ofFASA Corpscloselyheldbusiness operations its

affording flimsy information to members restricting governance to the elite few non

members hoarding a massive surplus interfering with freedom of contract both with

current and former members and charging inflated royalties but no dues as the FASA

Corp web site proclaims Exhibit B This latter is not to say that the members do not

feel an effect from FASA Corps royalty system because the rates they pay are perforce

affected by the hefty royalty charge every carrier must factor into its rate quotes

Ifa membercontrolled board ofdirectors approved legitimate overhead of say

1 Million it would be covered by atendollar surcharge if 100000 containers move

17



under the FASA Corp contract Itmay be argued that if FASA Corp actually negotiates

all the rates for a small shipper it justifies the shipperssupporting FASA Corps

excessive perbox fee but such an argument holds no water in light ofthe retained

surplus Some other associations have aperbox fee but those other associations turn

surpluses back to their members so the members only end up paying the cost ofthe

associationsactual operations no hidden payouts or hoards of treasure Exhibit B

F FASA Corps Benefits to its Members

We use the term members advisedly since FASA Corp does not appear to give

the majority of shippers who subscribe as members any membership rights or valuable

membership benefits other than the use ofthe FASA Corp umbrella service contract with

its general charges and rates Based on the documents produced in discovery FASA

Corps actual activities outside of limited contract negotiation and rate filing give no

member value comparable to the royalties receivedEthibit B There is a bit of

grandiose rhetoric on the FASAGemini web site about member benefits but they

amount to little in actual practice compared to a royalty of55 a fortyfooter

Other shippers associations web sites are extensive and information from them

is shown in snapshot by Exhibit B Samples from the web sites are attached as Exhibit O

and the full service nature ofthese associations is displayed there The web sites ofthe

associations ve surveyed display conscientious attention to maintenance of a true

association in structure operations and finances Exhibit B Perhaps FASA Corp

performs services not apparent to the naked eye but it looks like no more than a skeletal

operation heavily focused on signing ofion rates negotiated by its members and

collecting royalties Exhibit J
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I
G FASA Corps ArbitrationSeeking Penalties from KLine

Bag Bazaar executives had discussed independent contracting with Ms

Mayes culminating in the email to Ms Mayes attached hereto as Exhibit P Reneging on

Ms Mayessassurances to Bag Bazaar that there were no obstacles to or penalties for

contracting outside the FASA Corp umbrella FASA Corp claimed 75000 in penalties

plus legal fees from KLine in a New York arbitration for the Bag Bazaar and

Samsonite contracting Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 2226 Exhibit N

Apparently FASA Corp thinks royalties on the Bag Bazaar containers carried for the

disgruntled former member would somehow have magically flowed to FASA Corp but

for KLinescontract with the former member

KLines contract with Samsonite was pursuant to an RFP from Belgium

Exhibit A Attachment 3 which gave no heed to FASA Corp and to which FASA Corp

did not respond by its nature it could not quote responsive rates for an RFP The New

York arbitration brought by FASA Corp without member authorization is still in the

discovery stage with FASA Corp refusing to reveal its financials for KLine to use for

its defense

III ARGUMENT

A FMC Strictly Enforces Eligibility for Service Contract Participation

The Commission has a strong interest in ensuring that only proper parties are

signatories to service contracts When ineligible parties participate in a service contract

a fundamental aspect ofshipping regulation is defeated A purpose ofthe Shipping Act is

to establish a nondiscriminatory regulatory process for the common carriage of goods

46 USC 401011and that purpose is defeated when ineligible service contract
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parties receive service contract benefits to which they are not entitled and obtain

transportation at contract rates below those to which they are lawfully allowed to have

access 46USC 41102a Such cheating violates the public policy ofnon

discrimination in the Shipping Act

FMC regulations state that shipper parties to a service contract must be a cargo

owner anonvesseloperating common carrier NVOCC a shippers association or

bther 46CFR 5306a The determination as to whether a party meets one ofthe

statutory definitions is essential The Commission will determine whether members of

a shippers association are qualified for membership and therefore whether the

association qualifies asalegitimate shippers association under the Shipping Act Rose

Interttational Inc v Overseas Moving Nehvork International Ltd et al 29SRR 119

162163FMC 2001

Compliance with the definitional terms is equally essential for shippers

associations Congress made that unmistakably clear saying that a shippers association

can negotiate rates on behalfof its members Rpt 98600 98 Cong 2d Sess

February 23 1984 at p 28 A shippers association must operate on a nonprofit basis

for the members ofthe group to obtain volume rates or service contracts 46USC

4010223

B The Criteria for Qualifying asaShippers Association under the Shipping
Act Derive from the Statutory Definition and its Historical Legislative and

Judicial Context

Shippers association status under the Shipping Act should not be taken lightly it

depends on the presence ofessential elements as they have developed from the
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recognition ofshippers associations historically in domestic commerce under the

Interstate Commerce Act ICA and presently the Shipping Act

1 History

The Shipping AcYs introduction of shippers associations to the ocean regulatory

framework has an antecedent in concepts earlier used in the ICA both as to the definition

and the underlying aspect ofnonprofit operation To this extent the basis of shippers

associations status is similar under domestic land transportation and international ocean

transportation Under the ICA the essential element of shippers associations

qualification was operating on a nonprofit basis for the benefit ofits members That

factor distinguished between shippers associations which were cooperative associations

and freight forwarders which were for profit commercial enterprises Freight

Consolidators Cooperative Inc et al v United States et al 230 F Supp 692 695696

1964 US Dist LEXIS 8276 The former were exempt from regulation while the latter

were not

Under the Shipping Act the nonprofit element was intended by Congress to be

similarly essential Congress deliberately included the term on a nonprofit basis in the

Shipping Act definition as that term was also used identically in the ICA Congress

specifically referred to a shippers association asacooperating group engaged in

cooperative activities Rpt 98600 supra at 38

2 Legislative Background

In the legislative background ofthe Shipping Act of 1984 the term shippers

association appeared for the first time in the conference committee report resolving

differences beriveen the House and Senate bills that led to the 1984 Act Id at 2728
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1
The conferees agreed to the addition ofthis defined term having accepted the Senates

language regarding the implementation of service contracts and having substituted

shippers associatiod for the draft bilPs shipper joint venture as a permissible service

contract party Id at910 and 3839

The Shipping Act definition of shippers association derives from the Interstate

Commerce Act 49USC 105623Supp1980 formerly codified at 49USC

1002c As further discussed below the Interstate Commerce Act exempted from ICC

jurisdiction shippers associations who by definition were a shipper or a group of

shippers engaged in consolidating or distributing freight on a nonprofit basis for the

shipper or members ofthe group to secure carload truckload or other volume rates

Congress used almost the same language in defining shippers associations for purposes

ofocean common carriage in the US foreign commerce the Shipping Act version being

agroup ofshippers that consolidates or distributes freight on a nonprofit basis for the

members ofthe group to obtain carload truckload or other volume rates or service

contracts 46 USC 4010223

The regulatory genesis ofshippers associations under the ICC provides a

framework for presentday understanding and analysis The ICC strictly regulated

shippers associations if they werenot nonprofit but wereengaged in performing

transportationrelated services as freight forwarders for profit in interstate commerce

which required ICC operating authority Interstate Commerce Act 49USC

1002a5and 1010aConversely the ICA precluded ICC jurisdiction over bona fide

shippers associations operating as ashipper or a group of shippers in consolidating or

distributing freight on a nonprofit basis for the shipper or members ofthe group to secure

2z
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carload truckload or other volume rates Interstate Commerce Act 49USC

105623Supp1980formerly codified at 49USC 1002c

3 JudicialInterpretation

Although freight forwarders and shippers associations engaged in similar

activities they were nevertheless separated by sharply defined differences in

operation differences which Congress clearly recognized and provided for in the Freight

Forwarders AcY Frerght Consolidators Cooperatrve supra at 696 When confronted

with the task ofdetermining whether a shippers association was subject to ICC

jurisdiction as a freight forwarder both the ICC and the courts applied a fact intensive

examination ofthe form function and activities of the association focusing particularly

on the profit versus nonprofit status ofthe entity Id The court in Freight

Consolidators Cooperative Id unequivocally stated

a true shippers association is anonprofit cooperative association the

members bear the burdens as well as share the benefits ofits operations They
bear the expenses ofthe consolidation and distribution operation as well as

sharing in any surplus monies that remain in the associations treasury at the end

ofthe year See AtlantaShrppers Assn Inc 316ICC259 273279 294295

1962 Federal ShippersAssnInc 316ICC 523 533 1962 Carload

Shippers AssnInc 316USC259 273279 1962 sic In short the

operations conducted in the name of a purported shipper association in order to

come within the statutory exclusion must be conducted by the association which

at all times acts as agent for its shipper members who as its principals 1
possess the exclusive right and abiliry to control the operations and 2 assume

both jointly and severally the essential risks entailed in conducting such

operations Atlanta Shippers Assn Inc supra at 278 emphasis in original Cf

Pacific Coast 6Vholesalers Assnv United States 81FSupp 991 SD Cal 1949
affd per curiam 338 US 689 70 S Ct 411 94LEd 474 1950

The court in Freight Consolidators Cooperative was astounded by the plaintiffs

unsupported declarations comparing them to the old story ofthe wolves in sheeps

clothing but in a more modern setting and decrying the plaintiffs selfstyled title to
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shippers association Id at 697 The court upheld the ICCsfinding that the entity was

not nonprofit stating

These plaintiffs would have this court believe that they are a bona fide shippers
association simply because they say they are But the substantial evidence before
the Court points to a contrary conclusion The record details the plaintiffs
method ofoperations and amply supports the finding ofthe Interstate
Commerce Commission

Id

To operate as a shippers association under the Shipping Act FASA Corp has

styled itself as such an association apparently on the sole basis that it wasestablished as

a nonstock nonprofit corporation Fashion Accessories Shippers Association Incs

and Gemini Shippers Association Incs Opposition to Motion to Compel Production of

Documents at 10 However as the Frerght Consolidators court said what counts is not

what an entity calls itself but what the entity actually does Possible Violations of

Section 18aofthe ShippingAct 1916 and Seclion 2 of the Intercoastal ShippingAct

Arisingfrom Charging Higher Rates than Specified by Current Tariff 16 SRR425

434435 ID 1975 Administratively Final November 6 1975 The importance of

adherence to the definition is a mandate from Congress Ifa group ofshippers meets the

definition it can negotiate rates on behalfof its members Rpt 98600 supra at 28

The application ofthe definition here means that the practical issue should be

resolved by distribution of the 0Million to the members if FASA Corp wants to be a

Shipping Act shippers association

C The Commission Carefully Scrutinizes Claims ofShippers Association

Service Contract Status

Commission authority to examine a shippers association claim ofeligibility to

service contract is essential These contracts are filed confidentially possibly facilitating
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discriminatory conduct by entities ineligible for contract participation Such group

contractors like FASA Corp must not be left to pursue their own rather than their

members interest

In a complaint proceeding the Commission analyzed an entity claiming to be a

shippers association measuring it against the definitional elements ofa shippers

association In that proceeding the issue waswhether the entity met the definitional

requirement that its members be shippers as defined in the Shipping Act The

Commission agreed with the Administrative Law Judge that the entity was a proper

shippers association Rose International Inc supra at 161162

Squarely before the Commission in this case is another element ofthe definition

1

whether FASA Corp operates on a nonprofit basis for the members of the group

Complainant submits that it is not enough that FASA Corp has established itselfunder

Delawaresnonstock corporation law as in effect nonprofit FASA Corp must also

adhere to the requirements ofDelaware law applicable to nonprofit membership

corporations and it must also operate on a nonprofit basis for the benefit of its members

In the words ofthe court in Freight Consolidators Cooperative supra it must operate as

anonprofit cooperative association

The Commissions jurisdiction under the Shipping Act to find violations of the

Act by shippers associations in connection with service contracts Id and to find

violations of the Act by any person wasset out in the JURISDICTION section ofthe

verified Amended Complaint The Commission plainly hasjurisdiction over the

violations in connection with FASA Corps illegitimacies in service contracting as a

shippers association which are as follows
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D FASA Corp Is NotaShippers Association Under the Shipping Act

FASA Corp is not a Shipping Act shippers association for the following

reasons

1 FASA Corp is not governed as a cooperative association or according to

legal and organizational requirements applicable to Delaware membership
corporations

2 FASA Corp serves private purposes far beyond any public or membership
purposes

3 FASA Corp does not meet the nonprofiY requirement within the

Shipping Act definition and

4 FASA Corp does not perform services for members commensurate with

the royalties it collects the majority ofwhich are held as surplus

Whatever FASA Corp is it does not appear to be a shippers association under the

Act As to negotiating shipperspecific ratesKLines own experience and impression

are that highvolume shippers do the heavy lifting ofnegotiating their specific

commodity rates with carriers Exhibit A Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at at 12

which may have suited them up to now but they ofcourse are in the dark as to FASA

Corpsfinancial setup For the important parts of substantial service contracts FASA

Corp seems to be merely arubberstamping service This gives FASA Corp a

freewheeling business enterprise access to all the confidential rate information with no

safeguards protecting that confidentiality

1 Purpose ofthe Act

While the purposes ofthe Shipping Act referenced in its preamble language are

not often referred to in Commission rulings we suggest the purpose included on

enactment of the Shipping Act of 1984 has a place in contemplation ofthe concept of

nonprofiY expressed in the shippers association definition The concept by its very
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nature must exclude material private aggrandizement and control ofcontracting and rates

from the goals and methods of an association since these practices are antithetical to

competitive and efficient ocean transportation and greater reliance on the

marketplace 46 USC 401014

While an association can be expected to reasonably require some surplus funds

for unanticipated contingencies a fund of ten times overhead is well beyond the bounds

ofreason Excluding shippers from governance oftheir own association and from

knowledge of its finances and spending sevenfigure sums with no apparent services in

return are out ofstep with the purpose ofthe Act

The genius ofthe FASA Corp setup is blocking the shippers from information and

control Without knowledge the members are powerless but with knowledge and a say

in govemance the setup would selfpolice Key elements to the definition ofa shippers

association should be transparency and reasonableness and given transparency

reasonableness will follow because operation in the interest ofthe membership will

follow The status of shippers associatiod gives a license to make contracts for the

benefit ofshipper members it is not in furtherance ofthe purpose ofthe Act for it to be

used as a license for accumulation ofriches and uncontrolled spending of association

funds by an elite group ofnonmembers with selfperpetuating status

2 Federal Tax Law Provides Favorable Treatment for Shippers
Associations Operating on a Cooperative Basis

Just as the Shipping Act provides favorable contracting status for shippers

associations that operate on a nonprofit basis for the members of the group federal tax

law provides favorable tax treatment for corporations operating on a cooperative basis

See IRC 13811388 The definitions ofa shippers association and a cooperative are
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similar A shippers association and a cooperative must both operate for the benefit of

their members They must also operate on a nonprofit basis The Shipping Act of 1984

includes this requirement in the statutory definition ofa shippers association The

federal tax aw has imposed the requirement of operating on anonprofit basis through

case law

The three principles that define a cooperative for Federal tax purposes were set

out by the US Tax Court in the leading case ofPuget Sourrd Plyrvood Inc v Commr

44TC305 1965 acq 19661CB3 The first principle is that capital must be

subordinated which means that control ofthe cooperative must be vested in its members

rather than its shareholders and that strict limits must be placed on the amount that can be

distributed to shareholders The second principle is democratic control by the members

which generally requires that each member has a single vote regardless ofthe number of

shares owned The third principle is proportionate allocation ofprofits which requires

that profits be distributed to members based on the amount ofbusiness they transact with

the cooperativeie patronage rather than based on stock ownership 5ee generally

Freitag 442dTax Management Portfolio Taxation of Cooperatives and Their Patrons

2007

A cooperative is a taxable corporation but unlike other corporations it is entitled

to deduct from its tazcable income amounts distributed as patronage dividends See IRC

1382bPatronage dividends are payments to patrons which are based on the quantity or

valua ofbusiness transacted between the cooperative and the patron and are determined

by reference to the corporations net earnings from business done with or for its patrons

See IRC 1388a Thus if a shippers association operates at cost distributing all its
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income to its members as patronage dividends it can operate on ataxexempt basis To

permit cooperatives to retain funds for operating and capital needs patronage dividends

are not required to be paid in cash They may be paid by giving the patrons a notice or

certificate that can later be redeemed See IRC 1382b

It appears that many shippers associations are operated as cooperatives for

Federal tax purposes The website ofthe American Institute ofShippers Associations

under the heading About Shippers Associations states As cooperatives Asociations

sic are entitled to special treatment under federal taxing laws if they issue patronage

dividends to their members Seehttphvnvshippersorshipershtmllast visited on

July 1 2008 Additionally four of the ten shippers associations whose websites we

reviewed stated that surplus funds are distributed to members The other six websites did

not contain sufficient information for us to determine whether surplus funds are

distributed to members

3 FASA Corps Claimed TaxExempt Status is Inimical to the Concept
ofaShippers Association

FASA Corps claimedtaxexempt status is part of the FASA Corp structure which

is inimical to the proper structure ofa shippers association IfFASA Corp were taxable

it would have to retum surpluses to its members as a cooperative to avoid paying taxes

would have to be controlled by its members and would have to inform members as to its

finances FASA Corp has the best ofboth worlds Itpays no taxes builds up its stash of

cash and pays nothing out to the members

FASA Corpstaxexempt status is pertinent in evaluating FASA Corps status as

a shippers association FASA Corp has avoided taxation on millions ofdollars of

retained earnings daiming that it is an organization described in section 501c6 ofthe
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Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code Pursuant to Code sections

501a and 501c6business leagues notorganized for profit and no part ofthe net

earnings ofwhich inures to the benefit ofany private shareholder or individual are

exempt from federal income tax Treasury regulations promulgated under Code Section

S01c6 provide that as a condition oftaxexempt status as a business league

commonly referred to as a trade association today an organization must be

An association ofpersons having a common business interest the

purpose ofwhich is to promote such common interest and not to engage in

a regular business of a kind ordinarily carried on for profit Thus its

activities should be directed to the improvement ofbusiness conditions of
one or more lines ofbusiness as distinguished from the performance of

particular services for individual persons An organization whose purpose
is to engage in a regular business of a kind ordinarily carried on for profit
even though the business is conducted on a cooperative basis or produces
only sufficient income to be self sustaining is not a business league

Treas Reg 1501c61

a FASA Corp is not Legally TaxExempt as It is Operated

FASA Corp is actually not qualified for exemption from federal income tax for

several reasons First its primary activity is negotiating service contracts with ocean

caniers for the shipment of freight for its members This activity does not meet the

requirements for taxexempt status under Code Section 501c6because it is not

directed toward the improvement ofbusiness conditions for the fashion accessories

industry but rather is to some extent an activity that provides services to its members It

is well established that an organization whose principal purpose is to provide services to

members and promote the business interests ofinembers only rather than the industry as

a whole is not taxexempt under Code section 501c6See egTreas Reg

1501c61commodity and stock exchanges which serve their members as a
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convenience and economy in buying and selling not exempt Rev Rul 68264 19681

CB264 traffic bureau that arranges shipments and billings for a fee not exempt

Growers Cold Storage Warehouse Co v Commr17BTA1279 1929 operation ofa

cold storage warehouse for members on a cooperative basis not exempt Florists Tel

DeliveryAssnInc v Commr47BTA1044 1942 organization offlorists

promoting exchange oforders among its members not exempt Indiana Retail Hardware

Assn Inc v United States 366F2d 998 Ct Cl 1966 organization formed to facilitate

the purchase ofsupplies and equipment and to supply management services for its

members not exempt

Second FASA Corp fails to qualify as ataxexempt organization under Code

section 501c6because its primary purpose is to engage in a regular business ofa kind

ordinarily carried on for profit See supra Treas Reg 1501c61 FASA Corp

reported on IRS Form 990 Return ofOrganization Exempt from Income Tax for 2004

2005 and 2006 that its only source of income other than interest on its retained earnings

is membership dues and assessments of28 million to29 million each year

Exhibits C K and L This revenue however is not from membership dues and

assessments as that term is commonly understood FASA Corpsmembership

application and a PowerPoint presentation indicate there is no charge to become a

member Exhibits Q and R The ocean carrier vendors under the FASA Corp umbrella

service contract pay a flat fee of55 for each of the most common type of container

shippedEibitA Attachment 5 These fees which are the source ofFASA Corps

revenue are not member assessments but are in the nature ofbrokerage commissions or

fees paid to FASA Corp by ocean carriers for the refercal ofbusiness
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Whether FASA Corps revenue is correctly described as commissions paid by the

ocean carriers or fees indirectly paid in part by the members for services the result is the

same under the federal tax law FASA Corps only source ofrevenue is from the

operation ofa business providing limited services to its members or a kind of brokerage

to ocean carriers and that activity does not qualify for tax exemption under Code Section

501c6See egIndiana Retail Hardware Association 366 F2d 998 supra Rev

Rul 68264 supra

Third FASA Corp may have engaged in prohibited private inurement and if so it

would not qualify for taxexempt status under Code section 501c6even if its primary

activities satisfied the definition ofa business league In somewhat arcane language

Code section 501c6requires that no part ofthe net eamings of the organization

may inures to the benefit ofany private shareholder or individual In this context the

term private shareholder or individual refers to persons having a personal and private

interest in the activities ofthe organization Treas Reg 1501a1c These persons

often referred to as insiders are those who by virtue ofa special relationship with the

organization in question are able to influence the expenditure of its funds or the use of its

assets

In a typical inurement case the connection between the payments received by an

insider and the value ofthe services provided by the insider cannot be established or if

there is a connection the payments are out ofproportion to the value provided by the

insider to the organization Fonding Church ofScientolo v United States 412F2d

1197 Ct Cl 1969 cert denied 397 US 1009 1970 Chandler v Commr54TCM

CCH 1040 1987 On its Form 990 for 2005 and 2006 FASA Corp reported that its
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Executive Director Harold Sachs and its President Sara Mayes are related to each other

through their ownership of consuiting firms known as Lafayette ConsulYing Co Inc and

Dorea International Inc Exhibits L and C Part VA line 75b and Statement 9 FASA

Corp also reported on its Form 990 in years 2004 2005 and 2006 that it paid over 1

million in professional fees in each year Exhibits K L and C

Complainant has tried to determine from financial records whether the consulting

firms in which Sachs and Mayes share ownership or some other insiders are the

recipients ofthese fees but FASA Corp has refused to respond to the document requests

IfFASA Corp has paid over 1 million a year to firms in which its officers or some other

insiders have an interest and those fees exceed the value ofthe services received by

FASA Corp then FASA Corp has engaged in private inurement and is not entitled to tax

exempt status

b FASA Corp Knows It Is Not Exempt

FASA Corp appears to be aware that its primary activity does not qualify for tax

exempt status As an organizationcaimingtvcexempt status under Code section

501c6FASA Corp is permitted but not required to file an application for taxexempt

status vith the IRS No such application has been produced in discovery and thus we

assume that the Internal Revenue Service has not made a determination that FASA Corp

qualifies for taxexempt status Organizations claimingtaxexempt status under Code

section50c6are however required to file an annual return with the IRS on Form

990

Despite the fact that alits revenue is derived from royalties on shipping of

members freight aad despite the fact that its Certificate of Incorporation Exhibit S
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describes operating as a shippers association under the Shipping Act of 1984 as one of

its purposes FASA Corp does not even mention facilitating or negotiating service

contracts for shipping ofinembers freight as one ofits activities on its Form 990 for

2004 2005 or 2006 Exhibits K L and C This material omission from a filing with the

IRS looks like a badge ofFASA Corpsknowledge that its primary activity would doom

its claimed taxexemption Discovery ofFASA Corps tax preparer has been sought and

refused

That FASA Corp knovs a shippers association does not qualify fortaxexempt

status under Code section 501c6 is further evidenced by its efforts to take on the

appearance ofa trade association In its original Certificate of Incorporation Exhibit T

which was filed with the State ofDelaware on November 3 1986 FASA Corp stated that

its sole purpose was to act as a shippers association under the Shipping Act of 1984 On

May 10 1990 it amended its purposes to include purposes normally associated with a

trade association Exhibit S Specifically its amended purposes include

To advance and promote the general welfare of shippers of fashion accessories
and the members ofthe corporation

To foster and promote a high standard of business ethics among shippers of
fashion accessories

To provide a forum for the exchange of ideas and useful technical information

concerning problems improvements and developments in the transportation of
fashion accessories

To collect distribute and make available information and economic data

pertaining to the shipment and transpoRation of fashion accessories
To promote activities relating to technical research and development in the
transportation of fashion accessories

To assist legislative and governmental bodies and agencies and to present the
views of its members to such entities concerning matters affecting the welfare and

interests of fashion accessories
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However while it expanded its purposes in its Certificate of Incorporation

information provided in discovery3 shows no meaningful activities ofthis nature

Another step toward the appearance ofa trade association was taken by the merger of

NFAA into FASA Corp in 2004 While it appears FASA Corp has engaged in some

activities which advance the common interests ofthe fashion accessories industry such as

lobbying on legislation of interest to the industry these activities are a minimal part of its

overall activities According to the information produced only 240000ofrevenue of

almost 28 million in 2004rten percentwas spent on lobbying Exhibit K Such

incidental activities are not sufficient to justifytaxexempt status under Code section

501c6SeeegFlorists Tel Delivery Assn Inc 47BTA1044 supra

FASA Corp also produced Alerts Bulletins prepared by a law firm from

February 1 2001 to February I 2002 and a cover letter from the law firm indicating

copies had been sent to the firmsclients Exhibit U Based on the information

produced the Alerts Bulletins were not made available to the industry as a whole and

thus were not used for the taxexempt purpose ofadvancing the common interests ofthe

industry At best this information was used to advance the interests ofFASA Corps

members An organization that conducts research and makes it available only to

members is not exempt under Code section 501c6Glass Container Indus Research

Corp v United States No68409 1970 WL 280WD Pa Jan 16 1970 Rev Rul 69

106 19691CB 153

Respondents produced no index or dividers relating iu documents to ComplainanYs documents requests
Ifany documents were overlooked Respondents are to blame
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4 Beneftsto Members are Minimal

The FASA Corp Forms 990 and the FASA Corp responses to document requests

for proofof FASA Corp activities are bereft ofany indicia that FASA Corp benefits its

members or the industry to any meaningful extent by its activities In fact the Forms 990

portray a corporation sitting on a hoard ofcash to be used for unknown purposes The

Forms 990 give no hint that FASA Corp revenues are spent on the members or their

interests

E The Royalty Clause Violates the Act

The Royalty Clause Exhibit A Attachment 5 channels freight monies paid by

shipper members back to the shippers association the holder ofthe service contract

The dues label in the service contract appendices carries no weight if it quacks and

waddles then we know what it is even if it is called a poodle

The royalties are not dues if only because they do not except to a minor extent

find their way into any association purpose They are not atimevolume rate or some

kind of VIP refund because FASA Corp does not pay the freight Neither are they

classic rebates for the same reason They challenge clear labeling but seem to be a kind

ofbrokeragereferral fee or tea money not identified in the service contract or any

tariff As such they are prohibited by the Act at least insofar as they do not go for

legitimate nonprofit purposes or back to the members

The nature ofthe royalties as a kind ofbrokerage is highlighted by the emphasis

placed by Ms Mayes on the connection between FASA Corps referral of business to K

Line and KLines acceptance ofthe Royalty Clause in its Contract with FASA Corp
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This link is discussed in the Affidavit ofThomas Aldridge at 4 where he describes Ms

Mayessmarketing of the Royalty Clause by promising increased business to KLine

F The Exclusive Dealing Clause Violates the Act

1 Anticompetitive Fixing ofRate Levels

Exercise by a trade association ofcontractual power to specify rate levels a carrier

offers to former members appears to be aper se violation ofsection 1 ofthe Sherman Act

ISUSC I We have detailed the erroneous representations made by FASA Corp to

the Department of Justice in its application for a Business Review Letter See Note 4

infra and Exhibits H and I We will not belabor those points except to point out that

important considerations as to freedom ofcontracting which were considered de rigeur

by Justice are violated by the Exclusive Dealing Clause

Exercising contractual power to specify rate levels to current members may not

qualify as aper se violation of Sherman but it is anticompetitive in the extreme without

benefit to the members This aspect ofthe Exclusive Dealing Clause violates the third

purpose ofthe Act and is not a legitimate purpose ofan association formed for the

benefit ofthe members 46USC 401013 While a policy of no back soliciting

by carriers seems reasonable if a member approaches a carrier to contract independently

he should be free ofany impediment to so doing as FASA Corp advised the Department

ofJustice is the case with FASA Corp4

4
See Exhibits H and L Therein FASA Corp requested a business review letter BRL in

connection with its formation of the association FASA Corps letter specificallyarmed that FASA
members are not obligated to use FASAs services they aze free to use other services for their shipping
needs or route their own tracand deal directly with carriers They mayjoin other shippers associations
FASA will simply be one ofseveral altematives a member may utilize for import transpoRation services
Business Revieiv Letter Reguest FashionAcressories Shippers Associatron November 3 1986 1986
DOJBRL LEXIS 37
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Specifying rates to be charged current members which is in effect vetoing any

contracting outside FASA may fall outsideper se territory but it certainly is an

anticompetitive interference with members freedom of contract We find no other

association in our sample doing it Exhibit B

The Commission has often said it imports antitrust principles into Shipping Act

analyses and this interference with members freedom ofcontract presents a perfect

example ofneed for that consideration See for example AllMarine Moorings inc v

ITO Corporation ofBaltimore and The Maryland Port Authoriry 27SRR539 546

FMC 1996 A member is given the privilege of absorbing at least some part ofa

charge to the carriers which ends up in FASA Corpspocket meanwhile FASA Corp is

stifling the membersfreedom of contract by penalizing a carrier who presumes to deal

with the member at the membersrequest Themislabeled no back soliciting clause

approaches the issue furtively but Ms Mayes boldly misled Bag Bazaar management by

advising them there were no penalties connected with independent contracting

2 The Clause is Vague and Incomplete

The exclusive dealing clause is uncertain and vague The clause is written to

prohibit a carrier from contracting with any member or former member except upon

notice to the Association and subject to mutual agreement between the canier and the

Association Exhibit A Attachment 1

FASA Corps letter further acknowledged that the members would be chargedaper container
membership fee and that any monies that the association received in excess of adminishative and
operational expenses wouldbe distributed ditectly to the members Id

The BRL said that DOJ had no intention to challenge the FASA association DOJ conditioned its

opinion on FASAsrepresentation that FASA members will not be required to use any FASA services and
they will remain free to use other transportation options such as making direct arrangements with cazriers
or participating in other shippers associations Busrness Revrew Letter Oprnron Deportment ofJustice
Antitrast Division Mazch 25 1986 1987 DOJBRL LEXIS 18

38



When approached by a shipper to negotiate a service contract the ocean carrier

has the burden ofdetermining the past and present status The carrier would have to

retrieve and pore over FASA Corps records in an attempt to verify whether the shipper

had ever beenamember the precise meaning ofwhich is unknown Such an absurd

exercise would require reference to documents if available not contained in the service

contract itselfor a public source available and wellknown in the industry in violation of

46CFR 5308c1and 2

3 Compliance with the Clause Requires Refusal to Deal

IfKLine agreed to cooperate with FASA Corp in enforcing the exclusive

dealing clause KLine could expose itself to allegations of refusal to deal in violation

of46USC 411040 IfKLine agreed to FASA Corpsbackroom demands to set a

floor on pricing KLine might violate the Sherman Act 15USC 1

G FASA CorpsRatification Defense

FASA Corps major defense to illegality ofthe Exclusive Dealing Clause seems to

be that K Line accepted it in the three contracts with FASA Corp and several prior

contracts with a confused succession ofrelated entities or nonentities as the case may

be The jumbled history ofthese contracts is set out in the Amended Complaint

Section III B16

Apparently FASA Corp thinks that if KAM personnel knew there was a clause

labeled No Back Soliciting buried in the Contract Appendix the Clause is purified and

all is forgiven

The Commission has held that such a defense is defective The Commission has

authority to adjudicate issues that could be raised in a Commission instituted complaint
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alleging violations ofthe Shipping Act in connection with a service contract Cargo One

Inc v COSCO Container Lines Co Ltd 28SRR 1635 2000 Moreover the

Commission has said that it has authority and a duty to rule on the validity of service

contracts and their implementation even where the contract provides for arbitration of

contract disputes Anchor Shipping Co v Alianca Navegacao e Logistica Ltda 30

SRR991 FMC 2006 The fact that KLine entered into filed and implemented the

Gemini service contract is no bar toKLine now challenging the validity ofthe

contracYs terms Ceres Marine Terrinals Inc v Maryland PortAdministration 29

SRR 356 369 FMC 2001

H The Unlawful Royalties Squeezed out ofKLine

K Line received an invoice for2504200 in royalties under the Royalty

Clause from Gemini Shippers Group in JuneJuly 2007 Exhibit A Affidavit of

Thomas Aldridge at 25 and 26 When KLine pointed out it had no contract with

such an entity the FASA Group changed the name on the billhead to Gemini Shippers

Association and retumed it Exhibit N When KLine did not pay it FASA Group

included this amount as a separate count in their arbitration demand

Since there was no dispute that the containers had been carried under the Royalty

Clause of the FASA Corp Contract KLines only defense was their illegality the

availability ofwhich to K Line as an arbitrable matter in the arbitration was disputed by

FASA Corp K Line saw no point in arguing about this money as a separate count and

since rejection ofKLines illegality defense as an arbitrable matter would give FASA

Corp an excuse to claim attorneys fees for collecting the monies in the arbitration K

Line settled the matter with FASA Corp under protest Eshibit N
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FASA Corp had been on notice ofthe illegality ofthe royafties as a subject ofthis

Docket when it demanded payment ofthe royalties in the arbitration KLine requests

award ofreparations in the amount of those payments in this Docket together with

attorneys fees

IV CONCLUSION AND REOUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT
5

KLine submits FASA Corp is in the following position under the Act

1 It cannot lawfully act as a shippers association until it pays out the surplus to the
members

2 Itcannot lawfully act as a shippers association until it brings its structure and

govemance into compliance with law and its bylaws including full paRicipation
by members in governance and complete access by members to financial

information

3 Itcannot enforce or includeadues clause in contracts unless it spends those
monies on proper purposes and pays surpluses out to members

4 It cannot enforce the Exclusive Dealing Clause including in the New York

arbitration or include any similar clause in any contract

5 It cannot collect any charge from the carriers and must subsist on members

payments

Violation ofany ofthe above after the effective date ofan order herein should result in

immediate enforcement action

K Line further submits that since there are no Commission rules regarding the

organization of shippers associations it is reasonable for the Commission to allow FASA

Corp to correct the errors ofis ways without civil penalties K Line does however

submit that FASA Corp should be required to pay reparations toKLine in the amount

SKLinesMotion for Dispositive Ruling is filed under Commission Rule 5027346 CFR
50273
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ofthe unlawful royalties KLine was forced to pay under protest to FASA Corp

Exhibit N by threat ofpenalty and attorneys fees in the New York arbitration and to

pay KLines attorneys fees and expenses regarding this proceeding

KLine respectfully reGuests that Oral Argument be granted

Respectfully submitted

N P Meade
KLine America Inc

6009 Bethlehem Road

Preston MD 21655
4106731010
JohnMeaderusklinecom

Attorney for Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd

July 23 2008
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Washington D C 20036

Eliot J Halperin
Deana E Rose

202261012 ehalperinamdslawcom
2022611016 drosemdslavcom

Steptoe Johnson LLP

1330 Connecticut AvenueNW
Washington D C 20036
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1
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 23rd day ofJuly 2008 a copy of the foregoing
KawasakiKisen Kaisha LTDs Motion for Dispositive Ruling wasserved on the

following by email and United States mail

1
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Edward D Greenberg Esq
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David K Monroe Esq
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AFFIDAVIT OF THOMAS ALDRIDGE

This Affidavit is submitted in connection with the Motion for Dispositive Ruling of

Complainant Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd K Line in Federal Maritime Commission

Docket No 0710

Affiant states as follows

1 I am vice president ofK Line America Inc KAM and have held that

position since June 2001 Prior to that time I had been employed by KAM as

Assistant VP and General Sales Manager Account Representative Area Sales

Manager and Import Sales Manager

2 My duties as vice president include assisting in negotiating service contracts for

K Line for whom KAM acts as general agent in North America KAM does

not act as a carrier of any type and acts purely in an agency capacity Actions of

K Line referred to herein were taken by KAM personnel but K Line is the

service contracting party

3 In the course of my duties I assisted in negotiating rates with shippers who were

members of Fashion Accessories Shippers Association Inc FASA Corp for

contract years 2002005 20052006and 20062007 Nos 14042 14682 and

15115

4 FASA Corp assessed a per container charge for each container carried under

FASA Corp service contracts Originally FASA Corp billed the members for the

charges FASA Coip changed this procedure and insisted instead on invoicing the

carriers opay hecharges to FASA Corp If we did not agree we were advised

by Ms Mayes at FASA Corp that they could not steer business in our direction

On information and belief other carriers gave in to FASA Corps change and paid
FASA Corp the royalties K Line resisted and maintained that FASA Corps
invoices should be sent o the members

KLine had brought Ann Taylor to FASA Corp or some related FASA entity
prior to 2005 and KLine began carrying Ann Taylor shipments under K

Lines service contract with FASA Corp

6 In time Ann Taylors logistics director informed KAM that they had brought in a

consultant who told them the per container charge was not justified in light of the

benefits to Ann Taylor The logistics director advised that Ann Taylor would

resign from the association and wanted to contract with K Line independently

7 It was and is K LineKAM corporate policy not to solicit shippers association

members for independent contracts KAM told Ann Taylor that they would need

to inform the association and then resign from the association



8 Assuming that Ann Taylor had cleared this with FASACorp KAM signed a

contract for K Line with Ann Taylor No 15669 After signing we learned

that Ann Taylor had not gone to Ms Mayes our contact at FASA who in our

experience managed FASA Corp but somehow Ms Mayes had learned ofK

Lines contract with Ann Tayloc KAM had numerous discussions with Ms

Mayes who complained about the Ann Taylor contract and we repeatedly
explained that KLine never solicited Ann Taylor We explained that Ann

Taylorsconsulpng firm recommended that Ann Taylor resign from FASA Corp
membership

9 In the Ann Taylor discussions Ms Mayes pointed out the FASA Corp hoback

solicitation clause in the appendix to the service contract between K Line and

FASA Corp At that time I and others first became aware that the service

contracts MFSnoback soliciting clause was actually applied asano

contracting clause I was aware of that clause in the FASA Corp service

contracts believing that it was simply aprohibition against back solicitation

which was in any event against company policy The title of the clause referred

only to back solicitation Consequently Idid not read tlecomplete clause

which was in tiny print requiring strong magnification to read it Attachment 1
No one else at KAM understood that it wasanocontracting clause undl the

Ann Taylor situation arose

10 Ms Mayes told me she would waive the requirements of the no back

solicitation clause for K Lines contracting with Ann Taylor and Isent her the

atached confirmation describing our understanding Attachment2 In addition
she requested that we give FASA another account to make up for the loss of

Ann Taylor which we never did

11 Ms Mayes persistenfly demanded that KLine go along with all the other

carriers and have FASA Corp invoiceKLine and K Line pay the charges
directly She promised that if KLine went along with paying the per container

charge K Line would get more volume from FASACorp The KAM people
working on this still did not like this proposal and wanted to keep things the way

they had been Finally we gave in butKLine did not get any additional

volume

12 Bag BazaarAccessory Exchange was a FASA Coip member Bag Bazaar was

one ofKLines biggest customers in terms of container volume among the

customers who were members of FASA Corp Bag Bazaar shipperspecific
commodity rates were negotiated directly by us without involvement by FASA

Corp employees then we would take the resulting agreement to FASA Corp for

signing and then file it under their FMC service contract During contracting
season FASA Corp would negotiate with KLine only a few charges of general
applicability such as handling charges and some general poRoport rates not

for any specific customer

2



13 During calendar years 2005 and 2006 Bag Bazaar repeatedly approached me and

Pamela Donovan another KAM employee responsible for that account about

contracting independently with Bag Bazaar outside the FASA Corp service

contract No one at KAM or KLine ever suggested to Bag Bazaar the idea that

K Line might consider such independent contracting since corporate policy
prevented our doing so The Bag Bazaaz people explained they were not

receiving a level of benefits from FASA Corp justifying the FASA Corp
commission which was added to the carrier rates They advised that they were

going to withdraw from FASA Corp membership and K Line should make an

offer independently

14 A Bag Bazaar official advised mehe told Ms Mayes that they considered FASA

Corp did not afford benefits to members justifying the per container charge which

FASA Corp took from the carriers He also advised that he proposed a more

equitable scale of commissions but Ms Mayes refused to consider it Finally he

said he had requested opportunity to examine FASA Corps books but did not do

so in writing and Ms Mayes simply refused that request without asking for it in

writing

15 Since it is our corporate policy not to back solicit members of shippers
associations K Line would not and did not solicit Bag Bazaar foran

independent contract

16 In response to Bag Bazaazsovertures we always rejected the idea of independent
contracting until May 2006 as the May 31 expiration of the Bag BazaarlFASA

Corp service contract approached

17 Sometime in May 2006 we approached Ms Mayes and told her we were in a

position such that we had to make an independent offer Ms Mayes pointed out

Bag Bazaar could not commit as great aquantity as FASA Corp committed
therefore our offer must be above the rate in the FASA Corp contract for Bag
Bazaar which was expiring May 31 We did not agree

18 Our first offer to Bag Bazaar was for a rate above their current FASA Corp
contract rate we showed it to Ms Mayes which Bag Bazaar summarily rejected
Bag Bazaar then discontinued shipping with KLine In response we made

them an offer below their FASA Corp contract rate which they accepted
Accordingly we contracted with them effective after the date they advised they
resigned as a FASA Corp member Contract No 15121

19 No K Line or KAM employee or representative approached any shipper for

independen contracting whom we knew to be amember ofFASA Corp at any
time However during the 2006 contracting season Samsonites transportation
managers in Belgium issued a global request for proposals Attachment 3 to

which KAM responded on behalf ofKLine
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20 KAM made an offer in response which was accepted by Samsonite Contract No

15118 Samsonite USA was then a member of FASA Corp

21 I have no reason to believe that Samsonite USA would have shipped any of ihe

containers we carried under a FASACorpsponsored contract if KLiehad

failed to respond to Samsonite Europesglobal RFP In the circumstances of such

an RFP Iconsider it to have been an impossibility

22 Last yeaz a dispute arose between KLine and FASA Corp because FASA Corp
claimed that K Line owed FASA Corp the 55 per container charges on

containers that KLine carried for Bag Bazaar after they left FASA Corp and

for Samsonite under their RFP FASA Corp filed an arbitration claim in New
York

23 Under the arbitration FASA Corp is claiming that KLine owes 75000 in per
container royalties Iam unable to imagine why FASA Corp thinks he containers
we carried under the independent Bag Bazaar and Samsonite contracts could

possibly have moved under a FASA Corp service contract Bag Bazaar had

resigned when it started shipping with KLine and due to its managemenYs
position that FASA Corp did not give value to justify the percontainer chazges
there is no chance Bag Bazaar would have shipped under a FASA Corp contract

Ido not believe there was any feasible way that any carrier could have responded
to the Samsonite RFP with an offer to enter into a FASA Corp contract with

Samsonite It was never an option for any carrier

24 As a result of this dispute I came to realize that the FASACorps use of the no

back solicitation clause as anocontracting clause bars acarrier from

contracting with a FASA Corp member or former member as long as the
carrier has a contract with FASACorp It appazently applies even if the carrier

wants to contract with a member or former member in a trade lane not covered by
the FASA Corp contract FASA Corp used this bar against K Line in reprisal
for K Line doing business independenfly with Bag Bazaar and Samsonite K
Line was willing to discuss a new contract with FASA Corp in the 2007 season

but FASA Corp conditioned negotiations on KLine conceding the azbitration
and accepting the no contracting clause K Line declined then being fully
aware of the anticompetitive impact ofthe clause Attachment4

25 Under the Royalty Clause in its service contracts with FASA Corp Attachment
5K Line has paid FASA Corp a total of123459 in royalties stated as

dues for conuact containers carried K Line resisted the Royalty Clause
until the 20062007Contract The latest invoiced amount of2504200 under

Contract No 15115 waspaid under FASA Corps threat of collection by
arbitration which carries a penalty of attorneys fees

26K Line received an invoice for2504200 in royalties under the Royalty
Clause from Gemini Shippers Group in JuneJuly 2007 When KAM pointed
outK Line had no contract with such an entity FASA Corp changed the name

4



on the billhead to Gemini Shippers Association Attachment 6 Subsequent to

this FASA Corp added a claim for these monies to their arbitration demands and

payment was madeuder protest

Ideclrnder penalty

Thomas Aldridge
Vice President K Line

y that the foregoing is true and correct

r

a o
Date

c Inc
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cc

890 Mountain Ave

Murray Hill New Jersey 07974

9087904154

August 30 2004

Ms Sara Mayes
President

Fashion Accessories Shippers Association Inc

350 Fifrh Ave Suite 2030

New York N Y 10118

Dear Sara

I am writing in connection with the recently concluded service contract betweenKLine America Inc and
a FASAGemini member KLine America Inc understands that the FASA Gemini service contract

appendix Section 17b imposes certain preconditions to us signing a service contract with a

FASA Gemini member which conditions werenot met I have explained the circumstances to you
which made the individual service contract unavoidable and accordingly we are requesting a waiver of

the requirements ofthat section for this particular transaction You have stated that based upon

circumstances described byKLine America FASA Gemini will grantKLine a waiver and I am writing
to confirm his

Thank you very much for your cooperation

Sincerely

Thomas W Aldridge
Vice President Northeast Region
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Page 1 of 1

Eliot Halperin

From Eliot Halperin ehalperin@mdslawcom
To Eliot J Halperin ehatperin@mdslawcom
Sent Monday July 14 2008 558 PM
Attach LegalOpinionGemini051807pdf
Subject Fw Gemini Service Contract

Original Message
From Meade John KAMPRESTON
To Eliot Fialperin Deana E Rose
Sent Monday July 14 2008 553 PM

Subject FW Gemini Service Contract

From Meade John KAMPRESTON
Sent Tuesday May 22 2007 159 PM
To RSacksakanekesslercom

Subject FW Gemini

BobHere is the opinion There is no proposat to replace the clause The KLine position is that it should not
be part of a service contract Regards

This email is intended only for the named recipientsand may contain information that is confidential or

privileged If you are not the intended recipientsany use or dissemination whatsoever of this email or any
attachments thereto is strictly prohibited If you have received this email in error please notify the sender

immediately by replying to this email and then deleting it and any attachments from your system

7142008
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